RESOLUTION NO. 2024-40
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A TITLE VI PLAN FOR THE CITY OF SALEM

Whereas, discrimination on the basis of race, color, and national origin is prohibited in programs and
activities receiving federal financial assistance by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil
Rights Restoration Act of 1987, the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973, Age Discrimination Act of 1975,
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Executive
Order 12898 and Executive Order 13166; and

Whereas, the City has a long-standing policy, embodied in Salem Revised Code (SRC) Chapter 97, that
protects persons against discrimination in employment, housing and public accommodations on the basis
of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, marital status, domestic partnership, disability, familial
status, sexual orientation, gender identity, source of income and housing status; and

Whereas, as a condition of federal grants received by the City, the City must have a "Title VI Plan" to
implement the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Restoration Act
of 1987, the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973, Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Executive Order 12898 and
Executive Order 13166; and

Whereas, the City has prepared a plan which provides for the collection of data regarding persons
most impacted by City projects; establishes a complaint process for those believed to be discriminated

against under the provisions of Title V1; ensures enhanced public outreach of Title VI provisions and
procedures; and ensures monitoring and compliance of Title VI requirements; and

Whereas, the plan is consistent with, and furthers the objectives of SRC Chapter 97,

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Salem resolves as follows:

Section 1. The "City of Salem Title VI Plan,” which is attached hereto as "Exhibit A" and incorporated
herein by reference, is hereby adopted.

Section 2. This resolution is effective upon adoption.
ADOPTED by the City Council this 9™ day of September, 2024.
ATTEST:

City Recorder
Approved by City Attorney:



EXHIBIT A

City of Salem Title VI Plan

I. Non-Discrimination Policy

It is the express policy of the City of Salem (the City) that no person shall be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under, any
program or activity receiving federal funds on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex,
age, disability, or income, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil
Rights Restoration Act of 1987, the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973, Age Discrimination Act
of 1975, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, Executive Order 12898 and Executive Order 13166.

It is also the express policy of the City that no person shall be excluded from participation in,
be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any City program
or activity, whether those programs and activities are federally funded or not, on the grounds of
race, religion, color, sex, marital status, familial status, national origin, age, mental or physical
disability, sexual orientation, gender identity and source of income, as provided by Salem
Revised Code (SRC) Chapter 97.

I1. Authorities

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 [Pub. L. 88-352 (1964), codified as 42 U.S.C. §82000d
through 2000d-4]:

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits the discrimination in, or the denial of
benefits under, any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance on grounds
of race, color or national origin.

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, [Pub. L. 100-259, Sec. 6 (1988), codified as 42
U.S.C. 82000d-4a]:

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 broadened the scope of Title VI coverage by
expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all programs or
activities of federal aid recipients, subrecipients, and contractors, whether such programs
and activities are federally assisted or not.

Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973, [Pub. L. 93-87 (1973), codified as 23 U.S.C. §8324]:
The Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973 provides that no person shall, on the basis of sex,

be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal assistance.
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Age Discrimination Act of 1975, [Pub. L. 94-135 (1975), codified as 42 USC 86102):

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 provides that no person in the United States shall,
on the basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal assistance.

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Subchapter 2, Part A [Pub. L. 101-336 (1990); codified
as 42 U.S.C. §812131-12134]):

The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 provides that no qualified individual with a
disability shall, by reason of such disability, be excluded from the participation in, be
denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination by a department, agency, special
purpose district, or other instrumentality of a state or a local government.

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 [Pub. L. 93-112 (1973), codified as 29 U.S.C.
§794]

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 provides that no qualified handicapped
person, shall, solely by reason of his/her handicap, be excluded from participation in, be
denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity
receiving federal assistance.

23 CFR Part 200

23 CFR 200 are administration regulations promulgated by the Federal Highway
Administration that specify the Title VI implementation requirements for state
departments of transportation at state and local levels.

49 CFR Part 21:

49 CFR 21 are administration regulations promulgated by the US Department of
Transportation that specify the Title VI implementation requirements for state
departments of transportation at state and local levels.

Exec. Order No. 12898:

Executive Order 12898 regards federal actions to address Environmental Justice in
minority populations and low income populations. (Environmental justice seeks equal
protection from environmental and public health hazards for all people regardless of race,
income, culture and social class. Additionally, environmental justice means that no group
of people including racial, ethnic or socioeconomic groups should bear a disproportionate
share of the negative environmental consequences resulting from industrial, land-use
planning and zoning, municipal and commercial operations or the execution of federal,
state, local and municipal program and policies).
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Exec. Order No. 13166:

Executive Order 13166 regards the improvement of access to services for persons with
Limited English Proficiency.

SRC Chapter 97:

Because discrimination poses a threat to the health, safety and general welfare of Salem
residents and disrupts the institutions and foundation of the City’s community, and
recognizing the limits of the foregoing federal non-discrimination statutes, in 2002 the
City Council enacted SRC Chapter 97, Human Rights. SRC Chapter 97 prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, marital status, familial status,
national origin, age, mental or physical disability, sexual orientation, gender identity
source of income and housing status.

I11. Definitions
As used in this Title VI Plan, the following mean:

Affected Parties: persons protected against discrimination because of race, color,
national origin, sex, age, disability, or income by the Title VI Requirements, and SRC
Chapter 97.

Contractor: a person or entity who has entered into an agreement with the City that is
subject to the Title VI Requirements.

Human Rights Commission: the City Commission responsible for review of human
rights complaints under SRC Chapter 97.

LA Program: the Language Access program established by the City to assist individuals
who do not speak English as their primary language

Locating and citing actions: a recommendation by City staff or decision by the City staff
or the City Council that will result in the construction of a public facility that could have
adverse environmental impacts on the surrounding area.

Meaningful access: the provision of communicative assistance by the City necessary to
allow affected persons to participate in governmental services/activities.

Proposed Project: a project that receives federal funds and is subject to the Title VI
Requirements.

Subrecipient: a person or entity that receives federal funds from the City to be used by

the entity to further the objectives of the federal grant. The City is the recipient of the

grant, and the person or entity is a subrecipient of those grant funds. An example of a
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subrecipient relationship would be where the City grants federal funds to a non-profit
corporation that the corporation uses to provide assistance for low-income households to
pay utility bills.

Title VI Assurances: conditions imposed upon contractors or subrecipients as a result of
federal funding being directly or indirectly provided to the contractor or subrecipient.

Title VI Requirements: the nondiscrimination provisions contained in Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, the Federal Aid
Highway Act of 1973, Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Executive Order 12898 and
Executive Order13166.

IV. Title VI Plan Organization and Staffing

A. City Manager

The City Manager’s Office is responsible for ensuring the City’s compliance with Title VI
Requirements and SRC Chapter 97, including, but not limited, to monitoring City programs,
preparing required reports and undertaking such other responsibilities as required by 23 Code of
Federal Regulation (CFR) 200 and 49 CFR 21. (See Appendix A). To ensure compliance the
City Manager will appoint a Title VI Coordinator, and Department Directors will designate one
or more Department Liaisons within their respective departments.

B. Title VI Coordinator

The Human Rights and Federal Compliance Manager is the Title VI Coordinator and
responsible for the overall management of the Title VI Program, under the supervision of the
City Manager. The Title VI Coordinator’s responsibilities are:

1.

Process complaints regarding compliance with this Title VI Plan that are received
by the City.

Coordinate with Department Liaisons to compile statistical data related to race,
color, national origin, sex, age, disability, and income of participants in, and
beneficiaries of, federally funded programs to ensure compliance with the Title VI
Requirements.

Review City programs or projects receiving federal funds in coordination with
Department Liaisons to ensure compliance with Title VI Requirements.

In conjunction with the City Legal Department, review new local ordinances to
assure compliance with federal and state civil rights laws.

Conduct training programs related to Title VI Requirements for City staff who are
responsible for Title VI compliance, and for contractors or subrecipients who are
subject to Title VI Requirements.

Make recommendations to the City Manager on ways to achieve compliance with
Title VI Requirements.



Develop information regarding this Title VI Plan for dissemination to the general
public and, where appropriate, use the LA Program to ensure dissemination of
the information to affected populations.

Ensure that individuals who will be affected by locating and citing actions obtain
meaningful access to the public awareness/involvement process.

Identify deficiencies in compliance with the Title VI requirements, and make
recommendations to the City Manager for remedial actions to be taken to
promptly resolve such deficiencies.

C. Department Liaisons

Department Liaisons are responsible for the day-to-day administration of the Title VI Program
within their departments. The Title VI Coordinator shall keep on file an accurate and updated list
of all Department Liaisons. Department Liaisons’ responsibilities are:

1.

Ensure compliance, program monitoring, reporting, and education regarding the
Title VI Requirements within their respective departments.

Meet regularly with the Title VI Coordinator to discuss issues regarding Title V1
implementation and monitoring within the City.

Collect statistical data regarding participants in and beneficiaries of federally
funded programs including, for example, relocatees, Affected Parties, and
impacted communities (race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, and
income)

Make recommendations on ways to achieve better compliance with the Title VI
Requirements.

Conduct post-grant approval reviews of City programs and applicants (e.g.,
highway location, design and relocation, and persons seeking contracts with the
City), for compliance with the Title VI Requirements.

Conduct department meetings to review impacts of Proposed Projects on Affected
Parties.

Develop mechanisms to identify the population of Affected Parties for Proposed
Projects.

Notify Affected Parties of public meetings or hearings regarding a Proposed
Project, and ensure that meetings and hearings are accessible to all Affected
Parties.
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9. Disseminate information to the public regarding access to Proposed Project
information, specifications, and plans.

V. Title VI Program Components
A. Elimination of Discrimination

The City will continue its practice of identifying discrimination based on race, color, religion,
sex, marital status, familial status, national origin, age, mental or physical disability, sexual
orientation, gender identity, source of income and housing status, and where such discrimination
Is found to exist, implementing programs or practices to eliminate the discrimination. Programs
include, but are not limited to, hiring Minority/Women/Disadvantaged Business Enterprises
(DBE) contractors, providing translations through the LA Program, and conducting public
outreach and involvement in City projects.

B. Public Dissemination of Information

The Title VI Coordinator shall assist City staff in the creation and dissemination of Title VI
Program information to City employees, subrecipients, contractors, Affected Parties, and the
general public. Public dissemination efforts may include: posting public statements setting forth
the City’s non-discrimination policy; inclusion of Title VI Assurances in City contracts and
grants; and publishing a Title VI Policy Statement in a newspaper of general circulation in the
City and in other community/minority publications at least once annually; posting a Title VI
Policy Statement in vicinity of proposed City projects; and including a Title VI Policy Statement
in announcements of hearings and meetings; and providing notice of City Proposed Projects to
minority communities.

C. Departmental Responsibilities

Each Department Director is responsible for Title VI compliance for individual
projects. Compliance activities include, but are not limited to:

1. Ensuring that all aspects of a Proposed Project’s planning process and operations
comply with the Title VI Requirements.

2. Ensuring that Affected Parties have meaningful access to a Proposed Project’s
planning processes.

3. Assisting the Title VI Coordinator in gathering and organizing data.

4. Reviewing the Department work programs, policies, and other directives to ensure
compliance with the Title VI Requirements.

5. Verifying the level of participation of Affected Parties at public outreach
meetings.
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D. Title VI Assurances in Contracts and Grants

The Contracts and Procurement Division is responsible for the City’s general contracting,
consultant selection, negotiation, and administration of contracts for the City. The Contracts and
Procurement Division will ensure that all federally funded contracts administered by the City
contain Title VI Assurances. In the event that the City distributes federal funds to another entity
through grants or other agreements, the Department Liaison administering the grant or agreement
will ensure that such grants and agreements contain the Title VI Assurances. The Department’s
project administrator or grant administrator will monitor the performance of the contract or grant
for compliance. The Title VI Coordinator and Department Liaisons will coordinate efforts to
ensure that the requirements of Title VI are met throughout the entire contracting and grant
performance process.

E. Data Collection

Statistical data on Affected Parties will be compiled by each Department Liaison. The data
compilation process will be reviewed regularly by the Title VI Coordinator and the Department
Liaisons to ensure the data is sufficient to meet the requirements of this Title VI Plan.

F. Training Program

Annual training will be made available to Department Liaisons and other City staff responsible
for the implementation of the Title VI Requirements. Training will provide comprehensive
information on the Title VI Requirements and its application to specific programs or operations;
assistance on the identification of Title VI issues; and an overview of the complaint process.

G. Title VI Program Reviews

Each Department will conduct an annual Title VI Plan review to assess the Department’s
effectiveness in ensuring compliance with the Title VI Requirements. The Title VI Program
review will be overseen by the Title VI Coordinator with the assistance of the Department
Liaison, and will include an evaluation of administrative procedures and staffing; review of
operational guidelines for City staff, contractors and subrecipients; and assessment of resources
available to ensure compliance with the Title VI Requirements.
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l. Preventive and Remedial Efforts

The City will actively seek to prevent Title VI deficiencies or irregularities, and to remedy
violations or irregularities if they occur in the administration of a program subject to the Title VI
Requirements. In taking such action, the Department Liaison will work with the Title V1
Coordinator to create an action plan within 90 days of the date the need for preventive or
remedial action is identified by City staff. A copy of the action plan will be provided to the
Department Head and the City Manager and retained by the Title VI Coordinator.

When the Department Liaison reasonably believes a contractor or subrecipient has violated a
Title VI Requirement, the Department Liaison will follow the following process:

1. The project or grant administrator and the Department Liaison will meet with the
contractor or subcontractor to conduct an initial review of the facts supporting a
finding that a violation of the Title VI Requirements has occurred or is occurring.

2. If, after the initial review, the Department Liaison concludes that the contractor
or subrecipient has violated the Title VI Requirements, the contractors or
subrecipient will be given a reasonable time, not to exceed 90 days from the date
notice is provided to the contractor or subrecipient, to voluntarily correct non-
compliance.

3. The City will seek to obtain the cooperation of the contractor or subrecipient in
correcting non-compliance, and will offer to provide technical assistance needed
by the contractor or subrecipient to obtain voluntary compliance with the Title VI
Requirements.

4. A follow-up review will be conducted within 180 days of the date notice is
provided to the contractor or subrecipient to ensure that the violation of the Title
VI Requirements has been corrected. If after the review, the contractor or
subrecipient has failed to correct the violation, the City Manager may take
appropriate action (e.g., withhold funds, cancel contract) required to comply with
the City’s obligation under the federal grant.

5. When a contractor or subrecipient has failed or has refused to comply with Title
VI Requirements within the 180 day period after the initial review, the
Department Liaison will submit two copies of the file to the appropriate state or
federal agency (e.g., ODOT’s Office of Civil Rights or the FHWA), along with a
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recommendation that the file be reviewed for a determination of whether the
contractor or subrecipient has violated the Title VI Requirements.

V1. Complaint Process

Any person who believes that they or any other program beneficiaries have been subjected to
unequal treatment or discrimination in their receipt of benefits and/or services from the City, or
by a contractor or subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability,
or income, may file a Title VI Complaint with the Title VI Coordinator.

Any person who believes that they or any other program beneficiaries have been subjected to
unequal treatment or discrimination in their receipt of benefits and/or services, or on the grounds
of race, religion, color, sex, marital status, familial status, national origin, age, mental or physical
disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, source of income and housing status, may file a
complaint under SRC Chapter 97 with the City’s Human Rights Commission.

Every effort will be made to obtain early resolution of complaints at the lowest level possible.
The option of informal mediation meeting(s) between the Title VI Coordinator, City staff,
contractors, subrecipients, and Affected Parties may be utilized for resolution.

The following procedures cover all complaints arising under Title V1. These procedures do not
deny the right of the complainant after completion of the Title VI complaint process to file a
complaint with state or federal agencies or to bring a private action based on the complaint.

1. Any person, group of persons, or entity that believes they have been subjected to
discrimination under the Title VI Requirements may file a written complaint with
the Title VI Coordinator. The complaint must be filed within 180 days of the
alleged discriminatory act or occurrence.

2. Upon receipt of the complaint, the Title VI Coordinator will determine whether the
City has jurisdiction over the complaint, whether the complaint contains the
necessary information, what additional information is needed, and whether further
investigation is needed. Within 5 working days of receipt of the complaint, the
Title VI Coordinator will determine whether the City has jurisdiction, whether the
complaint is complete, and whether the complaint warrants investigation, and will
notify the complainant and the respondent of the institution of any investigation.

3. The Title VI Coordinator will provide the respondent with the opportunity to
respond in writing to the allegations in the complaint. The respondent shall have
15 days from receipt of notification to furnish a response to the allegations in the
complaint.

4. If the complaint is against a contractor or subrecipients, the City will have 15 days
from receipt of the complaint to advise the appropriate state or federal agency
(e.g., ODOT for transportation related projects) of the receipt of a complaint and
the status of the investigation.
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5. Within 60 days of the receipt of the complaint, the Title VI Coordinator will
cause to be prepared a written investigative report. The investigative report shall
include a narrative description of the incident, identification of persons
interviewed, findings, and recommendations for disposition. The written report
shall be reviewed and finalized by the Title VI Coordinator and sent to the City
Attorney.

6. The City Attorney will review the investigative report and meet with the Title
VI Coordinator and City Manager to determine the appropriate action.

7. Once the investigative report has been completed and appropriate action
determined, the complainant and respondent shall receive a copy of the
investigative report, a statement of appropriate action, and notification of appeal
rights.

8. Within 15 days of the complainant and respondent receiving a copy of the
investigate report and determination of appropriate action, the Title VI
Coordinator will meet with each party to discuss the determination of appropriate
action along with the findings and conclusions in the investigative report.

9. Within 60 days of receipt of the original complaint, a copy of the complaint and
the City’s investigation report and determination of appropriate action will be
provided to the appropriate federal or state agency (e.g., ODOT for
transportation related projects) for comments.

10.  Within 15 days of receiving comments from the federal or state agency, the Title
VI Coordinator will meet with all parties to the complaint to discuss the
comments provided by the federal or state agency.

11.  After receiving any comments from the appropriate federal or state agency, the
City Manager shall review the comments and adopt a final decision that includes
taking appropriate action to address any comments provided by the federal or
state agency. The final decision shall be provided to all parties to the proceeding,
and shall include a statement that a party has a right to appeal the City Manager’s
decision. A party may seek reconsideration of the City Manager’s final decision if
the party produces evidence of new facts that were not previously considered and
could not have been reasonably discovered during the investigation.

12. If a party is not satisfied with the results of the investigation or the disposition of
the complaint, the party may appeal the City Manager’s final decision to the
appropriate federal or state agency, by filing a request for an appeal no later than
180 days after the date of the City Manager’s final decision.
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APPENDIX A: AUTHORITIES

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 | Pub. L. 88-352 (1964), codified as 42 U.S.C.
§8§2000d through 2000d-41

42 U.S.C. § 2000d. Prohibition against exclusion from participation in, denial of benefits
of, and discrimination under Federally assisted programs on ground of race, color, or
national origin

No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin,
be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.

42 U.S.C. § 2000d-1. Federal authority and financial assistance to programs or activities
by way of grant, loan, or contract other than contract of insurance or guaranty; rules and
regulations; approval by President; compliance with requirements; reports to
Congressional committees; effective date of administrative action

Each Federal department and agency which is empowered to extend Federal financial
assistance to any program or activity, by way of grant, loan, or contract other than a
contract of insurance or guaranty, is authorized and directed to effectuate the provisions
of section 2000d of this title with respect to such program or activity by issuing rules,
regulations, or orders of general applicability which shall be consistent with achievement
of the objectives of the statute authorizing the financial assistance in connection with
which the action is taken. No such rule, regulation, or order shall become effective unless
and until approved by the President. Compliance with any requirement adopted pursuant
to this section may be effected (1) by the termination of or refusal to grant or to continue
assistance under such program or activity to any recipient as to whom there has been an
express finding on the record, after opportunity for hearing, of a failure to comply with
such requirement, but such termination or refusal shall be limited to the particular
political entity, or part thereof, or other recipient as to whom such a finding has been
made and, shall be limited in its effect to the particular program, or part thereof, in which
such noncompliance has been so found, or (2) by any other means authorized by law:
Provided, however, That no such action shall be taken until the department or agency
concerned has advised the appropriate person or persons of the failure to comply with the
requirement and has determined that compliance cannot be secured by voluntary means.
In the case of any action terminating, or refusing to grant or continue, assistance because
of failure to comply with a requirement imposed pursuant to this section, the head of the
Federal department or agency shall file with the committees of the House and Senate
having legislative jurisdiction over the program or activity involved a full written report
of the circumstances and the grounds for such action. No such action shall become
effective until thirty days have elapsed after the filing of such report.

42 U.S.C. § 2000d-2. Judicial review; administrative procedure provisions

APPENDIX A: AUTHORITIES
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Any department or agency action taken pursuant to section 2000d-1 of this title shall be
subject to such judicial review as may otherwise be provided by law for similar action
taken by such department or agency on other grounds. In the case of action, not
otherwise subject to judicial review, terminating or refusing to grant or to continue
financial assistance upon a finding of failure to comply with any requirement imposed
pursuant to section 2000d-1 of this title, any person aggrieved (including any State or
political subdivision thereof and any agency of either) may obtain judicial review of such
action in accordance with chapter 7 of Title 5, and such action shall not be deemed
committed to unreviewable agency discretion within the meaning of that chapter.

42 U.S.C. § 2000d-3. Construction of provisions not to authorize administrative action
with respect to employment practices except where primary objective of Federal financial
assistance is to provide employment

Nothing contained in this subchapter shall be construed to authorize action under this
subchapter by any department or agency with respect to any employment practice of any
employer, employment agency, or labor organization except where a primary objective of
the Federal financial assistance is to provide employment.

42 U.S.C. § 2000d-4. Federal authority and financial assistance to programs or activities by
way of contract of insurance or guaranty

Nothing in this subchapter shall add to or detract from any existing authority with respect
to any program or activity under which Federal financial assistance is extended by way of
a contract of insurance or guaranty.



The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, [Pub. L. 100-259, Sec. 6 (1988), codified as 42
U.S.C. 82000d-4a7

42 U.S.C. § 2000d-4a. ""Program or activity' and ""program"* defined

For the purposes of this subchapter, the term “program or activity”” and the term “program” mean

all of the operations of—

1)
(A) a department, agency, special purpose district, or other instrumentality of a State or of
a local government; or
(B) the entity of such State or local government that distributes such assistance and each
such department or agency (and each other State or local government entity) to which the
assistance is extended, in the case of assistance to a State or local government;

()
(A) a college, university, or other postsecondary institution, or a public system of higher
education; or
(B) a local educational agency (as defined in section 7801 of title 20), system of
vocational education, or other school system;

3)
(A) an entire corporation, partnership, or other private organization, or an entire sole
proprietorship—
(i) if assistance is extended to such corporation, partnership, private organization,
or sole proprietorship as a whole; or
(ii) which is principally engaged in the business of providing education, health
care, housing, social services, or parks and recreation; or
(B) the entire plant or other comparable, geographically separate facility to which Federal
financial assistance is extended, in the case of any other corporation, partnership, private
organization, or sole proprietorship; or
(4) any other entity which is established by two or more of the entities described in paragraph
(1), (2), or (3); any part of which is extended Federal financial assistance.


https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/20/7801

Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973, [Pub. L. 93-8711973), codified as 23 U.S.C. §3247

23 U.S.C. 8§ 324. Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex

No person shall on the ground of sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving
Federal assistance under this title or carried on under this title. This provision will be
enforced through agency provisions and rules similar to those already established, with
respect to racial and other discrimination, under title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964. However, this remedy is not exclusive and will not prejudice or cut off any other
legal remedies available to a discriminatee.



Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Pub. L. 94-135 (1975), codified as 42 USC 01021

42 U.S.C. § 6102. Prohibition of discrimination

Pursuant to regulations prescribed under section 6103 of this title, and except as
provided by section 6103(b) and section 6103(c) of this title, no person in the United
States shall, on the basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under, any program or activity receiving
Federal financial assistance.




Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Subchapter 2, Part A [Pub. L. 101336
(1990): codified as 42 U.S.C. §§12131-121341

42 U.S.C.
§12131.
Definition
s As used
in this

subchapter

(1) Public entity
The term "public entity” means
(A) any State or local government;
(B) any department, agency, special purpose district, or

other instrumentality of a State or States or local
government; and



(C) the National Railroad Passenger Corporation,
and any commuter authority (as defined in section
24102(4) of title 49).

(2) Qualified individual with a disability

The term "qualified individual with a disability” means an
individual with a disability who, with or without reasonable
modifications to rules, policies, or practices, the removal of
architectural, communication, or transportation barriers, or the
provision of auxiliary aids and services, meets the essential
eligibility requirements for the receipt of services or the
participation in programs or activities provided by a public entity.

42 U.S.C. §12132. Discrimination

Subject to the provisions of this subchapter, no qualified individual with a
disability shall, by reason of such disability, be excluded from
participation in or be denied the benefits of services, programs, or
activities of a public entity, or be subjected to discrimination by any such
entity.

42 U.S.C. §12133. Enforcement

The remedies, procedures, and rights set forth in section 794a of title
29 shall be the remedies, procedures, and rights this subchapter
provides to any person alleging discrimination on the basis of
disability in violation of section 12132 of this title.

(@)42 U.S.C. 812134. Regulations In general



Not later than 1 year after July 26, 1990, the Attorney General shall promulgate
regulations in an accessible format that implement this part. Such regulations
shall not include any matter within the scope of the authority of the Secretary of
Transportation under section 12143, 12149, or 12164 of this title.

(b)Relationship to other regulations

Except for "program accessibility, existing facilities"”, and "communications”,
regulations under subsection (a) of this section shall be consistent with this
chapter and with the coordination regulations under part 41 of title 28, Code
of Federal Regulations (as promulgated by the Department of Health,
Education, and Welfare on January 13, 1978), applicable to recipients of
Federal financial assistance under section 794 of title 29. With respect to
"program accessibility, existing facilities”, and "communications”, such
regulations shall be consistent with regulations and analysis as in part 39 of
title 28 of the Code of Federal Regulations, applicable to federally conducted
activities under section 794 of title 29.

(c) Standards

Regulations under subsection (a) of this section shall include standards
applicable to facilities and vehicles covered by this part, other than facilities,
stations, rail passenger cars, and vehicles covered by part B of this subchapter.
Such standards shall be consistent with the minimum guidelines and
requirements issued by the Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance
Board in accordance with section 12204(a) of this title.



Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 [Pub. L. 93-112 (1973), codified as 29
U.S.C. §7947

29 U.S.C.A. § 705. Definitions

For the purposes of this chapter [29 U.S.C.A. § 701 et seq.]:

*hkkkik

(20) Individual with a disability
(A) In general

Except as otherwise provided in subparagraph (B), the term "individual with
a disability" means any individual who--

(M has a physical or mental impairment which for such individual
constitutes or results in a substantial impediment to employment; and

(ii) can benefit in terms of an employment outcome from vocational
rehabilitation services provided pursuant to subchapter I, 111, or VI of
this chapter [29 U.S.C.A. § 720 et seq., 771 et seq., or 795 et seq.].

(B) Certain programs; limitations on major life activities

Subject to subparagraphs (C), (D), (E), and (F), the term "individual with a
disability"” means, for purposes of sections 701, 711, and 712 of this title and
subchapters Il, 1V, V, and VI of this chapter [29 U.S.C.A. 88 760 et seq., 780
et seq., 790 et seq., and 796 et seq.], any person who has a disability as defined
in section 12102 of Title 42.

(C) Rights and advocacy provisions
(1) In general; exclusion of individuals engaging in drug use
For purposes of subchapter V of this chapter [29 U.S.C.A. § 790 et seq.],
the term "individual with a disability"” does not include an individual who
is currently engaging in the illegal use of drugs, when a covered entity
acts on the basis of such use.

(i1) Exception for individuals no longer engaging in drug use

Nothing in clause (i) shall be construed to exclude as an individual with a
disability an individual who--



()] has successfully completed a supervised drug
rehabilitation program and is no longer engaging in the illegal
use of drugs, or has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully
and is no longer engaging in such use;

(1) is participating in a supervised rehabilitation program and is
no longer engaging in such use; or

(1) is erroneously regarded as engaging in such use, but is
not engaging in such use;

except that it shall not be a violation of this chapter [29 U.S.C.A. § 701
et seq.] for a covered entity to adopt or administer reasonable policies or
procedures, including but not limited to drug testing, designed to ensure
that an individual described in subclause (1) or (1) is no longer engaging
in the illegal use of drugs.

(iii)Exclusion for certain services

Notwithstanding clause (i), for purposes of programs and activities
providing health services and services provided under subchapters 1, 11,
and Il of this chapter [29 U.S.C.A. 88 720 et seq., 760 et seq., and 771
et seq.], an individual shall not be excluded from the benefits of such
programs or activities on the basis of his or her current illegal use of
drugs if he or she is otherwise entitled to such services.

(iv) Disciplinary action

For purposes of programs and activities providing educational services,
local educational agencies may take disciplinary action pertaining to the
use or possession of illegal drugs or alcohol against any student who is an
individual with a disability and who currently is engaging in the illegal
use of drugs or in the use of alcohol to the same extent that such
disciplinary action is taken against students who are not individuals with
disabilities. Furthermore, the due process procedures at section 104.36 of
title 34, Code of Federal Regulations (or any corresponding similar
regulation or ruling) shall not apply to such disciplinary actions.

(v) Employment; exclusion of alcoholics

For purposes of sections 793 and 794 of this title as such sections relate
to employment, the term “individual with a disability” does not include
any individual who is an alcoholic whose current use of alcohol prevents
such individual from performing the duties of the job in question or
whose employment, by reason of such current alcohol abuse, would
constitute a direct threat to property or the safety of others.



(D) Employment; exclusion of individuals with certain diseases or infections

For the purposes of sections 793 and 794 of this title, as such sections relate to
employment, such term does not include an individual who has a currently
contagious disease or infection and who, by reason of such disease or infection,
would constitute a direct threat to the health or safety of other individuals or
who, by reason of the currently contagious disease Or infection, is unable to
perform the duties of the job.

(E) Rights provisions; exclusion of individuals on basis of homosexuality
or bisexuality

For the purposes of sections 791, 793, and 794 of this title--
0] for purposes of the application of subparagraph (B) to such
sections, the term "impairment" does not include homosexuality or

bisexuality; and

(ii) therefore the term "individual with a disability"” does not include
an individual on the basis of homosexuality or bisexuality.

(F) Rights provisions; exclusion of individuals on basis of certain disorders

For the purposes of sections 791, 793, and 794 of this title, the term
"individual with a disability" does not include an individual on the basis of--

(i) transvestism, transsexualism, pedophilia, exhibitionism, voyeurism,
gender identity disorders not resulting from physical impairments, or
other sexual behavior disorders;

(if) compulsive gambling, kleptomania, or pyromania; or

(iii)psychoactive substance use disorders resulting from current illegal use
of drugs.

(G) Individuals with disabilities

The term "individuals with disabilities" means more than one individual
with a disability.

29 U.S.C. 8§794. Nondiscrimination under Federal grants and programs



(a) Promulgation of rules and regulations



No otherwise qualified individual with a disability in the United States, as defined
in section 705(20) of this title, shall, solely by reason of her or his disability, be
excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial
assistance or under any program or activity conducted by any Executive agency
or by the United States Postal Service, The head of each such agency shall
promulgate such regulations as may be necessary to carry out the amendments
to this section made by the Rehabilitation, Comprehensive Services, and
Developmental Disabilities Act of 1978. Copies of any proposed regulation
shall be submitted to appropriate authorizing committees of the Congress, and
such regulation may take effect no earlier than the thirtieth day after the date on
which such regulation is so submitted to such committees.

(b) "Program or activity" defined

For the purposes of this section, the term "program or activity" means all of the
operations of--

(1)(A) a department, agency, special purpose district, or
other instrumentality of a State or of a local government; or

(B) the entity of such State or local government that distributes such
assistance and each such department or agency (and each other State or
local government entity) to which the assistance is extended, in the case of
assistance to a State or local government;

(2)(A) a college, university, or other postsecondary institution, or a public
system of higher education; or

(B) a local educational agency (as defined in section 7801 of Title
20), system of vocational education, or other school system;

(3)(A) an entire corporation, partnership, or other private organization, or
an entire sole proprietorship--

(i) if assistance is extended to such corporation,
partnership, private organization, or sole proprietorship as
a whole; or

(i)which is principally engaged in the business of providing
education, health care, housing, social services, or parks and
recreation; or

(B) the entire plant or other comparable, geographically separate facility to
which Federal financial assistance is extended, in the case of any other
corporation, partnership, private organization, or sole proprietorship; or



(4) any other entity which is established by two or more of the
entities described in paragraph (1), (2), or (3);

any part of which is extended Federal financial assistance.
(c) Significant structural alterations by small providers

Small providers are not required by subsection (a) of this section to make
significant structural alterations to their existing facilities for the purpose of
assuring program accessibility, if alternative means of providing the services
are available. The terms used in this subsection shall be construed with
reference to the regulations existing on March 22, 1988.

(d)Standards used in determining violation of section

The standards used to determine whether this section has been violated in a
complaint alleging employment discrimination under this section shall be the
standards applied under title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
(42 U.S.C. 12111 et seq.) and the provisions of sections 501 through 504, and
510, of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12201 to 12204
and 12210), as such sections relate to employment.
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Federal Register
Vol. 59, No. 32

Wednesday, February 16, 1994

Presidential Documents

Title 3—

The President

Executive Order 12898 of February 11, 1994

Federal Actions To Address Environmental Justice in
Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations

By the authority vested in me as President by the
Constitution and the laws of the United States of America,
it is hereby ordered as follows:

Section 1-1.Implementation.

1-101. Agency Responsibilities. To the greatest extent
practicable and” permitted by law, and consistent with the
E{rmmples set forth in the report on the National Performance

eview, each Federal agency shall make achievin
environmental justice part of its mission by jdentlfallndq an
addressing, as appropriate, dis roPortlona_ter high and adverse
human health or environmental effects of its programs, policies,
and activities on minority populations and low-income
populations in the United States and its territories and

ossessions, the District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of
uerto Rico, and the Commonwealth of the Mariana Islands.

1-102. Creation of an Inte_ra%ency Working Group on
Environmental Justice. (a‘) Within 3 months of the date of this
order, the Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency
("Administrator") or the Administrator's designee shall convene
an interagency Federal Working Group on Environmental Justice
("Working Group"). The Working Group shall comprise the
heads of the following executive agencies and offices, or their
designees: (a) Department of Defense: (b) Department of Health
and Human Services; (c) Department of Housing and Urban
Dev_elo[pment; (d) Department of Labor; (e) Department of
Agriculture; (1) Department of Transportation; (g) Department of
Justice; (h) Department of the Interior; (i) Department of
Commerce; (j) Department of Energy; (K) Environmental
Protection Agency; (1) Office of Management and Budget; (m)
Office of Science and Technology Policy;

(n) Office of the Deputy Assistant to the President for
Environmental Policy; _ ) )

0) Office of the Assistant to the President for Domestic Policy;
&3) National Economic Council; (q) Council of. Economic

dvisers; and (r) such other Government officials as the
President may desqﬂnate. The Working Group shall report to
the President through the Deputy Assistant to the President for
Environmental Policy and the Assistant to the President for
Domestic Policy.

(t()j) The Working Group shall: (1) provide guidance to
Federal agencies on criteria for 1dentifying
dlsp_roportlonateI%/ high and adverse human health or
environmental effects on minority populations and low-
income populations;

(2)coordinate with, provide guidance to, and serve as a
clearinghouse for, each Federal agency as it develops an
environmental justice strategy as required by section 1-103 of
this order, in order to ensure that the administration,



interpretation and enforcement of programs, activities and
policies are undertaken in a consistent manner;

(3)assist in coordinating research by, and stimulating
cooperation among, the Environmental Protection Agency, the
Department of Health and Human Services, the Department of
Housing and Urban Development, and other agencies
conducting research or other activities in accordance with
section 3-3 of this order;

d(4)assist in coordinating data collection, required by this
order;

~ (5)examine existing data and studies on environmental
justice;
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_(6)hold public meetings as required in section 5- 502(d) of
this order; and

_(7) develop interagency model projects on environmental justice that
evidence cooperation among Federal agencies.

- 1-103. Develogment of Agency Strategies. (a) Except as provided
in section 6- 605 of this order, each Federal agency shall develop
an agency-wide environmental justice strategy, as set forth in
subsections (b)- (e) of this section that identifies and addresses
dlsp_roportlonatel¥ high and adverse human health or
environmental effects of |tsO|oro?ram_s, policies, and activities on
minority populations an ow-income populations. The
environmental justice strategy shall list programs, policies,
planning and public participation processes, enforcement, and/or
rulemakings related to human health or the environment that
should be revised to, at a minimum: (1) promote enforcement of
all health and environmental statutes in areas with minority popu-
lations and low-income populations; (2) ensure greater public
participation; (3) improve research and data collection relating to
the health of and environment of minority ?opulatlons and low-
income populations; and (4) identify differential patterns of
consumption of natural resources among minority populations and
low-income populations. In addition, the envifonmental justice
strategy shall include, where appropriate, a timetable for
undertaking identified revisions and consideration of economic
and, social implications of the revisions.

(b)y Within 4 months of the date of this order, each Federal agency
shall identify an internal administrative Ip_rocess for developing its
environmental justice strategy, and shall inform the Working
Group of the process.

(c) Within 6 months of the date of this order, each Federal
agency shall provide the Working Group with an outline of its
proposed environmental justice strategy.

(d) Within 10 months of the date of this order, each Federal
agency shall provide the Working Group with its proposed
environmental justice strategy.

(e) Within 12 months of the date of this order, each Federal
agency shall finalize its environmental justice strategy and provide
a copy and written description of itS strategy to the Working
Grou'g_. During the 12 month period from the date of this order,
each Federal agency, as part of its environmental justice strateg?/,
shall identify several specific projects that can be promptly
undertaken to address particular concerns identified during the
development of the proposed environmental justice strategy, and a
schedule for implementing those projects.

(I) Within 24 months of the date of this order, each Federal
agency shall report to the Working Group on its progress in
implementing its o
agency-wide environmental justice strategy.

(gL_FederaI agencies shall provide additional periodic reports to the
Working Group as requested by the Working Group.

1- 104. Reports to the President. Within 14 months of the date
of this order, the Working Group shall submit to the President,
through the Office of the Deputy Assistant to the President for
Environmental Policy and the Office of the Assistant to the
President for Domestic Policy, a report that describes the
implementation of this order, and includes the final environmental
justice strategies described in section 1- 103(e) of this order.



Sec. 2- 2. Federal Agenc?/ Responsibilities for Federal Programs.
Each Federal agency shall conduct its programs, policies, and
activities that substantially affect human health or the
environment, in a manner that ensures that such programs,
policies, and activities do not have the effect of excluding
persons (including populations) from participation in, denying
persons (including populations) the benefits of, or subjectin
persons (including populations) to discrimination under, suc
programs, policies, and activities, because of their race, color, or
national origin.
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Sec. 3- 3.Research, Data Collection, and Analysis.

3- 301. Human Health and Environmental Research and
Analysis. (a) Environmental human health research, whenever
practicable and appropriate, shall include diverse segments of
the population in epidemiological and clinical studies, including
segments at high risk from environmental hazards, such as
minority populations, low-income populations and workers who
may be exposed to substantial environmental hazards.

(b) Environmental human health analyses, whenever practicable and
appropriate, shall identify multiple and cumulative exposures.

(c) Federal agencies shall provide minority populations and
low-income populations the opportunity to comment on the
development and design of research strategies undertaken
pursuant to this order.

3- 302. Human Health and Environmental Data Collection and
Analysis. To the extentJ)ermltted by existing law, including the
Privacy Act, as amended (5 U.S.C. section 552a): (a) each
Federal agency, whenever practicable and appropriate, shall
collect, maintain, and analyze information assessing and
comparing environmental and human health risks borne by
populations identified by race, national origin, or income. To
the extent practical and appropriate, Federal agencies shall use
this information to determine whether their programs, policies,
and activities have disproportionately high and adverse human
health or environmental effects on minority populations and
low-income populations;

(b) In connection with the development and implementation of
agency strategies in section 1- 103 of this order, each Federal
agency, whenever practicable and appropriate, shall collect,
maintain and analyze information on the race, national origin,
income level, and other readily accessible and appropriate
information for areas surrounding facilities or sites expected to
have a substantial environmental, human health, or economic
effect on the surrounding populations, when such facilities or
sites become the subject of a substantial Federal environmental
administrative or judicial action. Such information shall be
made available to the public, unless prohibited by law; and

(c)Each Federal agency, whenever practicable and
appropriate, shall collect, maintain, and analyze information on
the race, national origin, income level, and other readily
accessible and appropriate information for areas surrounding
Federal facilities that are: (1) subject to the reporting require-
ments under the Emergency_PIannlng and Community Right-to-
Know Act, 42 U.S.C. section 11001- 11050 as mandated in
Executive Order No. 12856; and f2) expected to have a
substantial environmental, human health, or economic effect on
surrounding populations. Such information shall be made
available to the public, unless prohibited by law.

(d)In carrying out the responsibilities in this section, each
Federal agency, whenever practicable and appropriate, shall
share information and eliminate unnecessary duplication of
efforts through the use of existing data systems and cooperative
agreements among Federal agencies and with State, local, and
tribal governments.

Sec. 4- 4. Subsistence Consumption of Fish and Wildlife.

4- 401. Consumption Patterns. In order to assist in identifyin
the need for ensuring protection of populations with differentia
patterns of subsistence consumption of fish and wildlife, Federal
agencies, whenever practicable and appropriate, shall collect,



maintain, and analyze information on the consumption patterns
of populations who principally reI?/ on fish and/or wildlife for
subsistence. Federal agencies shall communicate to the public
the risks of those consumption patterns.

4- 402. Guidance. Federal agencies, whenever practicable and
appropriate, shall work in a coordinated manner to publish
guidance reflectlng the latest scientific information available
concerning methods for evaluating the human health risks
associated with the consumption of pollutant-bearing fish or
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wildlife. Agencies shall consider such guidance in developing their
policies and rules.

Sec. 5- 5. Public Participation and Access to Information. (a) The
public may submit recommendations to Federal agencies relating
to the incorporation of environmental justice principles into
Federal agency programs or policies. Each Federal agency shall
convey such recommendations to the Working Group.

(b) Each Federal agency may, whenever practicable and appropriate,
translate crucial public documents, notices, and hearm?s relatlng_ to
human health or the environment for limited English speaking
populations.

(c) Each Federal agency shall work to ensure that public
documents, notices, and hearings relating to human health or the
teﬁlwrotr)llr_nent are concise, understandable, and readily accessible to

e public.

(d) The Working Group shall hold public meetings, as
appropriate, for the purpose of fact-finding, receiving public
comments, and conducting inquiries concerning environmental
justice. The Working Group shall prepare for public review a
summary of the comments and recommendations discussed at the
public meetings.

Sec. 6- 6. General Provisions.

6- 601. Responsibility for Agency Implementation. The head of
each Federal agency shall be responsible for ensuring compliance
with this order. Each Federal agency shall conduct internal
reviews and take such other steps as may be necessary to monitor
compliance with this order.

~6- 602. Executive Order No. 12250, This Executive order is
intended to supplement but not supersede Executive Order No.
12250, which requires consistent and effective implementation of
various laws prohibiting dlsc_rlmlnato'q/ %ractlces in programs
receiving Federal financial assistance. Nothing herein shall limit
the effect or mandate of Executive Order No. 12250.

6- 603. Executive Order No. 12875. This Executive order is not
intended to limit the effect or mandate of Executive Order No. 12875.

6- 604. Scope. For purposes of this order, Federal agency means
any agency on the Working Group, and such other agencies as may
be designated by the President, that conducts any Federal program
or activity that substantially affects human health or the
environment. Independent agencies are requested to comply with
the provisions of this order.

6- 605. Petitions for Exemptions. The head of a Federal agency
may petition the President for an exemption from the requirements
of this order on the grounds that all or some of the petitioning
agency's programs or activities should not be subject to the
requirements of this order.

6- 606. Native American Programs, Each Federal a(I;ency

responsibility set forth under this order shall apply equally to

Native American programs. In addition, the Department of the

Interior, in coordination with the Working Group, and, after

consultation with tribal leaders, shall coordinate steps to be taken

ﬁ)_u_rguant to this order that address Federally-recognized Indian
ribes.

6- 607. Costs. Unless otherwise provided by law, Federal agencies
shall assume the financial costs of complying with this order.



6- 608. General. Federal agencies shall implement this order
consistent with, and to the extent permitted by, existing law.

6- 609. Judicial Review. This order is intended only to improve
the internal management of the executive branch andis not
intended to, nor does it create any right, benefit, or trust
responsibility, substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or
equity by a party against the United States, its agencies, its
officers, or any person. This order shall not be construed to create
any right to judicial review involving the compliance or
noncompliance
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of the United States, its agencies, its officers, or any other
person with this order.

Of AA A

THE WHITE
HOUSE, February
11, 1994,

E&%E&gion 59
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Title 3—
The President

Executive Order 13166 of August 11, 2000

Improving Access to Services for Persons With Limited English
Proficiency

By the authority vested in me as President by the Constitution and
the laws of the United States of America, and to improve access
to federally conducted and federally assisted programs and
activities for persons who, as a result of national orlgln, are
Prnlted in their English proficiency (LEP), it is hereby ordered as
ollows:

Section 1. Goals.

The Federal Government provides and funds an array of
services that can be made accessible to otherwise eligible persons
who are not proficient ) _
in the English language. The Federal Government is committed to
improving the accessibility of these services to eligible LEP
persons, a goal that reinforces its equally important commitment to

romoting programs and activities deSigned to hello individuals
earn English. To this end, each Federal agency shall examine the
services It provides and develop and implement a system by which
LEP persons can meaningfully access those services consistent
with, and without unduly burdening, the fundamental mission of the
agency. Each Federal agency shall also work to ensure that
recipients of Federal financial assistance (recipients) provide
meaningful access to their LEP applicants and beneficiaries. To
assist the agencies with this endeavor, the Department of Justice
has today issued a general guidance document (LEP Guidance),
which sets forth the compliance standards that recipients must
follow to ensure that the programs and activities they normally
provide in English are accessible to LEP persons and thus do not
discriminate on the basis of national origin in violation of title VI
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and its implementing
regulations. As described in the LEP Guidance, recipients must take
reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to their programs and
activities by LEP persons.

Sec. 2. Federally Conducted Programs and Activities.

~ Each Federal agency shall prepare a plan to improve access to
its federally conducted programs and activities by eligible LEP
persons. Each plan shall be consistent with the standards set forth
In the LEP Guidance, and shall include the steps the agency will
take to ensure that eligible LEP persons can meaningfully access
the agency's programs and activities. Agenmes shall devéelop and
begin to implement these plans within 120 days of the date of this
order, and shall send copies of their ?Ians to the Department of
Justice, which shall serve as the central repository of the agencies'
plans. Sec. 3. Federally Assisted Programs and Activities.

_Each agency providing Federal financial assistance shall draft
title VI guidance specifically tailored to its recipients that is
consistent with the LEP Guidance issued by the Department of
Justice. This agency-specific guidance shall detail how the general
standards established in the LEP Guidance will be applied to the
agency's recipients. The agency-specific guidance shall take into
account the types of services provided by the recipients, the



individuals served by the recipients, and other factors set out in the
LEP Guidance. Agencies that already have developed title VI
guidance that the Department of Justice determines Is consistent
with the LEP Guidance shall examine their existing guidance, as
well as their programs and activities, to determine If additional

uidance is necessary to comply with this order. The Department of
ustice shall consult with the agencies in creating their guidance
and, within 120 days of the date of this order,
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each agenc¥ shall submit its specific guidance to the Department
of Justice for review and approval. oIIowmg approval by the
Department of Justice, each agency shall publish its guidance
document in the Federal Register for public comment.

Sec. 4. Consultations.

In carryin%out this order, agencies shall ensure that stakeholders,
such as LEP persons and their representative organizations,
recipients, and other appropriate individuals or entities, have an
adequate opportunity to provide input. Agencies will evaluate the
particular needs of the LEP persons they and their recipients serve
and the burdens of compliance on the agency and its recipients.
This input from stakeholders will assist the agencies in developing
an approach to ensuring meaningful access by LEP persons that is
practical and effective, fiscally responsible, responsive to the
particular circumstances of each agency, and can be readily
Implemented.

Sec. 5. Judicial Review.

This order is intended only to improve the internal management
of the executive branch and does not create any right or benefit,
substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or equity by a party
against the United States, its agencies, its officers or employees, or
any person.

ii)/a1A: A AIN A ;NL*A

THE WHITE
HOUSE, August 11,
2000.
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From SRC Chapter 97

97.005. Policy. It is the policy of the City of Salem to eliminate discrimination based on race,
religion, color, sex, marital status, familial status, national origin, age, mental or physical
disability, sexual orientation, gender identity and source of income. The City Council finds
that such discrimination poses a threat to the health, safety and general welfare of the citizens
of Salem and menaces the institutions and foundation of our community. Furthermore, the City
Council finds that although the State of Oregon generally prohibits discrimination in
employment, housing, and public accommodation on the basis of race, religion, color, sex,
marital status, familial status, national origin, age, and disability, the State does not generally
prohibit such discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation, gender identity, domestic
partnership, or source of income. It is the intent of the Council to supplement the state
protections against discrimination. Furthermore, it is the intent of the Council, in the exercise
of its powers for the protection of the public health, safety, and general welfare and for the
maintenance of peace and good government, that every individual shall have an equal
opportunity to participate fully in the life of the City and that discriminatory barriers to equal
participation in employment, housing, and public accommodations be removed.

97.010. Defmitions. As used in this chapter, except where the context otherwise requires:

(a)""Age' means age 18 or older.

(b)  "Agent means any person (not an employee or officer), who is an agent of a public
body for purposes of the Tort Claims Act, if that person meets the usual "control" tests with
respect to the manner of performance of duties, or if that person performs a function or
responsibility of the City of Salem on behalf of the City. A person is not an agent if he or she
merely performs a service without supervision or control for the City and not on its behalf.
(c)"*Domestic partnership’ means a relationship between two persons who meet either of
the following requirements: (1) have registered, certified or affirmed their relationship with
any appropriate, legally established domestic partnership registry within any jurisdiction in
the United States, or with the State of Oregon's Public Employees Benefits Board; or (2) are
18 years of age or older; are each unmarried; are each other's sole domestic partner and intend
to remain so indefinitely; are not related by blood closer than would bar marriage in the State
of Oregon; and are residing together, share the common necessities of life and are responsible
for each other's common welfare. 708 /,009

(d) "Employer'™ means any person, wherever situated, who employs one or more
employees within the city, or who solicits individuals within the city to apply for
employment, whether privately or by general advertisement.

(e)"Gender identity" means a person's actual or perceived sex, including a person's identity,
appearance, expression, or behavior with respect to actual or perceived sex, whether or not that
identity, appearance, expression or behavior is different from that traditionally associated with
the person's sex at birth.

(t) ""Person’ means an individual, partnership, association, organization, corporation, board,
commission, or other organized and identifiable group. "Person” includes a public body as
that term is defined by ORS 30.260(4) other than the State of Oregon or a county.



(9)""Registered volunteer is a person who donates labor or services to the City under the
supervision of an employee of the City of Salem and performs a function or responsibility of
the City on behalf of the City.

(h) "Sexual orientation' means actual or perceived heterosexuality,

homosexuality, or bisexuality.

(i) ""Source of income™ refers to the means by which a person supports himself or herself
and any dependents, including but not limited to money and property from any occupation,
profession or activity, from any contract, settlement or agreement, from federal or state
payments, court-ordered payments, gifts, bequests, annuities, life insurance policies, and
compensation for illness or injury, but excluding any money or property derived in a manner
made illegal or criminal by any law, statute or ordinance.

() "Vocational school' means any person who trains and teaches individuals to engage in
any trade, business, or vocational pursuit. (k) Any term used but not defined in Chapter 97
shall be interpreted consistently with definitions provided in Oregon Revised Statutes,
Chapter 659A (2001).
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APPENDIX B: Title VI Assurances

The following is a sample form of Title VI grant assurance (Transportation-related). The
form will be modified as appropriate to accommodate the specific requirements of the
federal agency providing grant funds.

Title VI Assurances

[*] (hereinafter referred to as the "Recipient”), HEREBY AGREES THAT as a condition to
receiving any federal financial assistance that it will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, 78 Stat. 252, 42 USC 2000d-42 USC 2000d-4 (hereinafter referred to as the Act),
and all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations,
Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, part 21, Nondiscrimination in
Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), and other pertinent
directives, to the end that in accordance with the Act, Regulations, and other pertinent
directives, no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin,
sex, age, disability or income be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Recipient
receives federal financial assistance from the Department of Transportation, including the
Federal Highway Administration, and HEREBY GIVES ASSURANCE THAT it will promptly
take any measures necessary to effectuate this agreement. This Assurance is required by
Subsection 21.7(a)(1) of the Regulations.

More specifically and without limiting the above general assurance, the Recipient hereby gives
the following specific assurances to its Federal Aid Highway Program.

1. That the Recipient agrees that each "program™ and each "facility" as defined in
Subsections 21.23(e) and 21.23(b) of the Regulations, will be (with regard to a
"program™) conducted, or will be (with regard to a "facility™) operated in compliance with
all requirements imposed by, or pursuant to, the Regulations.

2. That the Recipient shall insert the following notification in all solicitations for bids for
work or material subject to the Regulations made in connection with the Federal Aid
Highway Program and in adapted form in all proposals for negotiated agreements: The
City of Salem in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 78 Stat.
252, 42 USC 2000d-d4 and Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of
Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, part 21, Nondiscrimination in
federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation issued pursuant to such
Act, hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that any contract entered
into pursuant to this advertisement, will ensure that minority business enterprises will be
afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, or
income in consideration for an award.

City of Salem Title VI Plan APPENDIX B



3. That the Recipient shall insert the clauses of this Assurance in every contract subject to
the Act and the Regulations.

4. That where the Recipient receives federal financial assistance to construct a facility, or
part of a facility, the Assurance shall extend to the entire facility and facilities operated in
connection therewith.

5. That where the Recipient receives federal financial assistance in the form, or for the
acquisition of real property, or an interest in real property, the Assurance shall extend
rights to space on, over or under such property.

6. As a covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, permits, licenses, and
similar agreements entered into by the Recipient with other parties: (a) for the subsequent
transfer of real property acquired or improved under the Federal Aid Highway Program;
and (b) for the construction or use of or access to space on, over or under real property
acquired, or improved under the Federal Aid Highway Program, the Recipient shall
include the following as appropriately modified:

The GRANTEE/LESSEE, for himself or herself, his or her heirs,
personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of
the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant
running with the land that in the event facilities are constructed,
maintained, or otherwise operated on the said property described in this
lease, for a purpose for which a City of Salem program or activity is
extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar
services or benefits, the GRANTEE/LESSEE shall maintain and
operate such facilities and services in compliance with all other
requirements imposed pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal
Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the
Secretary, part 21, Nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of
the Department of Transportation — Effectuation of Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964, as said Regulations may be amended.

That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination
covenants, the City shall have the right to terminate the lease, and to
reenter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the
same as if said lease had never been made or issued.

7. That this Assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which federal financial
assistance is extended to the program, or is in the form of, personal property, or real
property or interest therein or structures or improvements thereon, in which case the
Assurance obligates the Recipient or any transferee for the longer of the following
periods: (a) the period during which the property is used for a purpose for which the
federal financial assistance is extended, of for another purpose involving the provision of
similar services or benefits; or (b) the period during which the Recipient retains
ownership or possession of the property.
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8. The Recipient shall provide for such methods of administration for the program as are
found by the Secretary of Transportation, or the official to whom s/he delegates specific
authority to give reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, subgrantees, contractors,
subcontractors, transferees, successors in interest, and other participants of federal
financial assistance under such program will comply with all requirements imposed or
pursuant to the Act, the Regulations, and this Assurance.

9. The Recipient agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial endorsement with
regard to any matter arising under the Act, the Regulations, and this Assurance.

THIS ASSURANCE is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all
federal grants, loans, contracts, property, discounts or other federal financial assistance extended
after the date hereof to the Recipient by the Department of Transportation under the Federal Aid
Highway Program and is binding on it, other recipients, subgrantees, contractors, subcontractors,
transferees, successors in interest and other participants in the Federal Aid Highway Program.

The person or persons whose signatures appear below are authorized to sign the Assurance on
behalf of the Recipient.
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APPENDIX C: Contract Assurances

The following is a sample form of Title VI contract assurance. The form will be modified
as appropriate to accommodate the specific requirements of the federal agency providing

funds.

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors
in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor™) agrees as follows:

1)

@)

3)

(4)

()

Compliance with Regulations: The Contractor shall comply with the Regulations relative
to nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the-U.S. Department of
Transportation (hereinafter, "USDOT”) Title 49 , Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21,
as they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations),
which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this Contract.

Nondiscrimination: The Contractor, with regard to the work performed during the
contract, shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age,
disability, or income, in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including
procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Contractor shall not participate
either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by 49 CFR 21.5 including
employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of said
CFR.

Solicitations for Subcontractors, including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In
all solicitations made by the Contractor, either by competitive bidding or negotiation for
work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases
of equipment; each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the Contractor
of the Contractor's obligations under this contract and 49 CFR 21.5 relative to
nondiscrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, or
income.

Information and Reports: The Contractor shall provide all information and reports
required by 49 CFR 21.5 or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to
its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be
determined by the Oregon Department of Transportation (hereinafter, "ODOT"), the
Federal Highway Administration (hereinafter, "FHWA"), the Federal Transit
Administration (hereinafter, "FTA"), the Federal Aviation Administration (hereinafter,
"FAA"), and/or the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration to be pertinent to
ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and instructions. Where any
information required of a Contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or
refuses to furnish this information the Contractor shall so certify to ODOT, FHWA, FTA,
FAA, and/or the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration as appropriate, and shall
set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the
nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, ODOT shall impose such contract
sanctions as it or FHWA, FTA, FAA, and/or the Federal Motor Carrier Safety
Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:
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a. withholding of payments to the Contractor under the contract until the Contractor
complies, and/or

b. cancellation, termination or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.

(6) Incorporation of Provisions: The Contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1)
through (6) in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of
equipment, unless exempt by 49 CFR 21.5, or directives issued pursuant thereto. The
Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as
ODOT, FHWA, FTA, FAA, and/or the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration may
direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance.
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